
CWAC Front End Committee 

10/1/15 – Joliet 

Draft Minutes #2 - 10/2/15 

1 | P a g e  
 

Present – Kate Buchanan, Jeff Buhrmann, Ray Gates, Anne Gold, Kathy Grzelak, Nora Harms-Pavelski, Beth Horowitz, 
Johnikutty Joseph, Chris Kelly, Melissa Ludington, Doryce McCarthy, Karen Major, Wendy Payne, Laura Rios, Amy 
Roman, John Schnier, Marc Smith, Tim Snowden, William Steinhauser, Jill Tichenor, Lori Welcher-Evans, Brigid Luke 

Minutes of the previous meeting 8/17/15 – Nora asked if there were any changes or discussion. Bill Steinhauser moved 
to accept the minutes as presented. Karen Major gave the second. There was no discussion. The minutes were 
approved. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Report from Data Group – Marc noted the report is in today’s packet. He asked everyone to submit to him, in writing, 
ideas about additional data they recommend be collected. Marc asked for input now regarding the report that is in the 
packet.  

The next meeting will be via conference call on 10/15 at 9am. Those who cannot participate should email their input to 
Marc and Anne.  

Kate noted agencies should decide what data is important enough that we ask DCFS to build capacity to collect and 
report it.  

Anne noted that she developed a possible format to report their data to us, focusing on various aspects of client 
services, resources and service needs. Anne’s clerical could put that data in a spreadsheet. Anne said p. 8 in the packet is 
a case closing report developed by Joe Coffey, covering the past 12 months. Jeff clarified that the model in the packet 
includes all cases closed – not just Intact. The reasons for case closing come directly from the reasons in CYCIS. 

Jeff said many reasons marked “other” are often used for convenience, when in fact one of the other reasons is the 
accurate reason.  

John discussed and Anne said we can add “cases re-opening.” John said we want to know why they came in initially and 
why they came back in. Jeff said there are opportunities and proxy measures in the DCFS systems that can provide this 
data. Anne said to include rationale with data requests.  

Anne noted that the current DCFS data reports, including on p. 16 “Cases Approaching 6 Months,” are included in 
today’s packet. Nora asked that this report be made available to agencies.  

Karen said to make sure we gather data that is related to requirements in the program plan. Jeff said every time we 
change policy or plan, we must think of all possible ramifications of that change, including data and how it is collected, 
used and interpreted/compared – especially in multi-year analysis. One question by Melissa is what, if any, relationship 
is there between intact cases opened and closed and numbers of PC’s. Jeff noted that p. 9 has data about the entire 
front end. This is the weekly statistical summary that can be shared. Nora said OITS is correcting that report, so it is not 
being sent right now. Wendy pointed out that much data is already in the annual report. We should also be capturing 
and reporting data about Spanish clients and services.  

 



CWAC Front End Committee 

10/1/15 – Joliet 

Draft Minutes #2 - 10/2/15 

2 | P a g e  
 

Report from Program Plan/Alignment with Policy Group 

Karen said the next meeting of this group is not scheduled. How does procedure reflect practice around the program 
plan? Or should procedure drive best practice regardless of program plan content? Which comes first? The current 
program plan is based on current 302.388, plus we have a draft-in-progress of 302.388 that is not yet official. So which 
document do we use in this committee’s work? The group needs to decide what they want procedure to look like. 

Bill asked if, policy-wise, we are in a minimal approach or ideal approach. Should procedures represent the ideal? The 
program plan must be consistent with procedure.  

Nora said procedures reflect minimums based on laws and rules. It is the general daily expectations that must be done – 
not the pie in the sky. Jeff said it is what is sufficient, as opposed to what is minimum. 

Anne said the current draft represents best practices, but we know that minimum is all we’re going to get. Current draft 
P302.388 is reflective of the work. Nora said draft P302.388 will be out for comments. Anne said the current draft 
includes Mike Ruppe’s changes. Nora encouraged all to comment when the draft comes out. It contains input from the 
Chicago Public Guardian made when the draft was put out in 2013. Jeff said the procedures may have become too 
complex for workers to comply. John said when the work force says they cannot do the work we need to listen, this is all 
very complex.  

Dashboard – Program Plan – Karen said this is what we look at now and leave procedure until last. John said decide what 
if anything should come off the dashboard. Jeff said the Department has never said it would not discuss intact funding. 
Kate said funding must address rates plus amount needed for the number of families needing service; do we have 
enough capacity? Kate asked if we can get from the data, answers about needed capacity and resources. One example is 
when we have out of home safety plans where we have more than one family involved, sometimes far away, and thus, 
this costs more than serving an Intact case. Anne will send concerns and examples to Nora.  

Kate said, 2 years ago we discussed excluding out of home safety plans from Intact. Deb said Anne’s office will begin 
doing case assignment in downstate Central. Deb said we need to deal with this locally, in the AA’s local meetings. What 
is and is not a referral? She noted that Intact Intake cannot be predicted. Nora agreed we have to stop this by working 
locally. Deb said this is between case assignment and the intact agencies. Karen said providers must push back – even 
when no decline – on taking these cases with out of home safety plans. Deb said we first have to define “appropriate 
referral.” Jeff said if there is an out of home safety plan it is not intact. Nora said safety plans are to last 10-14 days, so 
let’s start by Nora looking at the referrals raised here today.  

Melissa and Kate will find this data from a year ago that was submitted to DCFS, and they will send it to Nora. Deb said 
we will do exclusions for Intact in Jan. Deb said centralize referrals and assignment with Ray and Johni. Anne said Johni 
doing assignment only in Cook now. Kate asked agencies to determine how much more it costs to serve cases with out 
of home safety plans. Chris noted that families get no support for caring for children in out of home safety plans. Should 
DCP get the kids back home and end the safety plan before the case is referred to Intact? 1. Nora will take a look at all 
this starting with the 10 referrals in Peoria and the ones Johni found. 2. Anne will look at numbers in agencies weekly 
reports – all agencies must include in those reports the numbers of intact cases they get with out-of-home safety plans. 



CWAC Front End Committee 

10/1/15 – Joliet 

Draft Minutes #2 - 10/2/15 

3 | P a g e  
 

Anne will ask all agencies to do this. Nora encouraged supervisors to talk w/AA’s about concerns, then her if still 
problems. 

Quarterly Regional Meetings 

In Cook, Johni will set these up. Christine said in Champaign, not many showed up. Several said POS agencies have not 
been invited. Deb said we are trying to standardize quarterly meetings so all know months in advance. In Cook, the 3 
agencies that cover all Cook will get invited to all and can attend 1, 2 or 3 of the Cook Region meetings. Anne said only 
one agency changed their Cook Region coverage areas when she sent their FY16 contracts, leaving 3 covering all of 
Cook. 

Jill Tichenor - IA 

Jill monitors Intact disruptions daily. The IA template is not geared to Intact, so she and Anne met to change it. They 
discussed a practice memo about what sections of IA don’t need to be completed for Intact, e.g. “Caregiver” section. We 
probably cannot change the template in SACWIS. Jill and Anne will draft a practice memo for input from this group. 

Any case that disrupts within 14 days of opening will be designated as a “Standard Case,” and the IA will be conducted. 
The pilot yielded positive feedback about doing IA’s on Intact cases. They are teasing out criteria and preparing a 
proposal for financial support for IA for Intact. All should send ideas to Jill and Anne. It may be 90 days before the 
practice memo comes out. Jill will report out at the Intact Statewide Providers Meeting in February. Right now everyone 
can stop filling out the caregiver section. Jill will send Anne a statement to post on DNET. Jill said over the last 3 years 
Intake downstate has been flat, and has increased by 425 in Cook. They are moving their database into SACWIS. 

Nora said in Florida they are doing work with predictive analytics and boutique computer agencies that can do reports 
much more quickly than we can, so we may work with the Eckerd Corporation to do this in Illinois. They determine 
predictive factors, and then we look for the factors in cases. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Case Extension Reviews - Nora said this is part of contract and we want to look at how to do it collaboratively. Anne said 
the draft on p. 22 is something we need an ad hoc committee to finalize. This can be done as a “staffing concept.” 

If we have approved Tier 2, we will not do a case extension review for that case. If the case is Tier 1 at 6 months, the 
agency could request Tier 2. Or, we could give 30 days’ more, etc. This will be collaborative. If court involved, we don’t 
do this. Melissa asked why we will do these reviews. Anne said policy requires it. And, cases that close won’t get this 
review, nor will court involved cases. Chris asked if we could use this for exclusions. Melissa said this should be done at 
level 3 monitoring. Wendy said use this to justify work internal to each agency. Melissa said it is redundant, and not 
what department should do. Kate said that there are already incentives to close at 6 months. This seems like a lot of 
work in light of what we already do. Nora said this has to be done, as it’s in the contract. Anne said 54% already close at 
6 months. Ray said if agencies focused on submitting cases for Tier 2, there will be less 6 month extensions to do. Bill 
moved to move this to committee. Deb seconded. There was no discussion. The motion passed. Tim, Doryce, Laura and 
Brigid volunteered to serve. Anne will email the four volunteers to set up a meeting. 



CWAC Front End Committee 

10/1/15 – Joliet 

Draft Minutes #2 - 10/2/15 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

Follow-up 

John will make sure that he sent the report for the Director, to Teddy.  

Charter – John said that a group is looking at this, especially regarding membership; and Teddy oversees this. John said if 
anyone resigns, he and Nora will discuss a replacement. Agencies do not hold seats here; people do; and they are 
chosen on their perceived ability to contribute. This is an open meeting, so anyone can attend. Wendy is resigning, and 
Brigid Luke will continue to attend. 

Intact Worker Training – Training is doing transcript reviews and determining who needs to attend what. Marc said 3 of 
his experienced staff have to go to training for 4 weeks and they have caseloads. This has effects on safety. The 
committee requested that this be formally addressed at the next Front End meeting on 11/5/15. Some of the staff is 
failing the tests. There is an especially high rate of failure on the specialty tests.  Nora will talk to Deb and Joyce. Kate 
said we need the problem solved. Ray reminded all that he gave Training ideas for locations where they can deliver 
training across the state. This occurred when Training appeared before this committee back in January. At that time, 
Training promised to develop more schedules and more places; however, details about this have not been reported back 
to this committee. The committee recommended that veteran staff be allowed to take the CERAP and CWEL exams 
without first going to training.  

Tier 2 Rate Conversion Timing – Bill recommended that we change the system so that if an agency submits a Tier 2 
request before the first 6 months has passed, the Tier 2 rate will not take effect until the first 6 months of service has 
been completed.  

Next Meeting – This group has scheduled meetings for the first Thursday of every month, in Joliet. Therefore, the next 
meeting will be on Thursday, November 5, at 10am. There will also be a pre-meeting for POS agency members, which 
will begin at 9am. 

*Send invites into members Outlook calendar.  

 


